
     

   

              
     

     
    

   

 
                  

       

                
          

 
               

             
            

     
 

               
             

             
   

 
                

      
 

 

 
  

  
 

 
 

               
 

 
 

                     

  
   

   
  

 

  

CITY  OF  PORT  COLBORNE  
Municipal Offices 

66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, Ontario 

L3K 3C8 
www.portcolborne.ca 

Corporate Services Department, Clerk�s Division 

November 5, 2020 

Ann-Marie Norio Sent via E-mail 
Regional Clerk, Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Dear Ms. Norio: 

Re:  Resolution  �  Designating  the  Vulnerable  Aquifer  Schedule  B  of  Official  Plan  as  a  Source  
Water  for  Rural  Residents  of  Port  Colborne  

Please be advised that, at its meeting of October 26, 2020, the Council of The Corporation of the 
City of Port Colborne resolved as follows: 

That Council recognizes the Aquifer as identified in Schedule B3 of the Official Plan as a 
source water for the rural residents of the City; and 

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to amend the Official Plan to 
include the Aquifer such that the Aquifer receives the same consideration and protection 
from susceptible threats of contamination or adverse impact as the intake protection 
zones (IPZ-1 and IPZ-2); and 

That the Region of Niagara, Township of Wainfleet, City of Welland, Town of Fort Erie 
and Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority be notified of the City�s action and be 
requested to pursue similar updates to their municipal planning documents in order to 
protect the aquifer. 

A copy of the above noted resolution is enclosed for your reference. Your favourable consideration of 
this request is respectfully requested. 

Sincerely, 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

Encl. 

ec: Township of Wainfleet, City of Welland, Town of Fort Erie, and Niagara Peninsula Conservation 
Authority 

Telephone: 905-835-2900 E-mail: cityclerk@portcolborne.ca Fax: 905-834-5746 
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Memorandum 

To: Mayor Steele and Members of Council 

From: Councillor Harry Wells 

Date: October 26, 2020 

Re: Designating the Vulnerable Aquifer Schedule B3 of Official Plan as a 
source water for rural residents of Port Colborne 

The City has received a significant number of requests from citizens urging and 
pleading the decision makers for the City to protect the vulnerable aquifer identified in 
Schedule B3 of the City�s Official Plan (OP). The rural community of Port Colborne and 
other settlements in Ontario and New York state depend on this same aquifer to supply 
them their everyday need for fresh consumable water. 

We are surrounded by high quality fresh water and because of this many of us take it for 
granted until we turn on the tap and no water comes out or the water that does come 
out is not suitable for consumption. A mere 0.014% of all water on Earth is both fresh 
and easily accessible with 97% of the remaining water being saline, and a little less than 
3% being difficult to access. We are so fortunate to have this quality and quantity of 
fresh water and we as decision makers for the City are accountable to make the 
appropriate decision to protect it. This Council has to take the lead in acknowledging 
that water is a scarce and precious resource and that protecting the quality of the 
aquifer is a necessity, not an option. 

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) calls for the protection of resources, public 
health and safety, and the quality of the natural environment. The policies of the PPS 
represent minimum standards and the PPS recognizes and expects Planning authorities 
and decision-makers to go beyond these minimum standards to address matters of 
importance to their community, as long as doing so does not conflict with any policy of 
the PPS. The policies of the PPS are expected to be complemented by City generated 
policies and plans regarding matters of interest to the City such as protecting the 
Aquifer. 

The Clean Water Act regulates the municipal drinking water system and addresses 
Intake Protection Zones and recognizes that the people of Ontario are entitled to expect 
their drinking water to be safe. The Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Plan, and the 
City�s OP and Zoning By-law (ZBL) establish levels of protection for identified intake 
protection zones for the City�s urban drinking water system but, presently there are no 
policies for private water supply for rural residents. The issue being the Aquifer is not 
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privately owned and is accessible to the public. The current Regional Official Plan calls 
on the City to develop and adopt Local Official Plans and Secondary Plans containing 
more detailed environmental policies in conformity with Provincial and Regional policies 
and Plans. 

The City is responsible for its local water distribution network and local sewer collection 
system so it should also be responsible for protecting the City�s rural source of water the 
Aquifer. The Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority�s, Niagara Drinking Water 
Source Protection Plan States �We all need and deserve safe drinking water and, in this 
regard, it is in everyone�s interest to ensure that our drinking water is safe and secure�. 

I am requesting that Council approve the following motion; 

That Council recognizes the Aquifer as identified in Schedule B3 of the Official 
Plan as a source water for the rural residents of the City; and 

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to amend the Official 
Plan to include the Aquifer such that the Aquifer receives the same consideration 
and protection from susceptible threats of contamination or adverse impact as 
the intake protection zones (IPZ-1 and IPZ-2); and 

That the Region of Niagara, Township of Wainfleet, and Town of Fort Erie be 
notified of the City�s action and be requested to pursue similar updates to their 
municipal planning documents in order to protect the aquifer. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Harry Wells 
Ward 4 Councillor 
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